1959

Joseph H. Dupler et al v. Maurice Yates : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

This is an appeal from a summary judgment (88) entered in favor of defendant and against plaintiffs. This summary judgment was entered before defendant an-

swered. The defendant filed a motion to dismiss and a motion to make more certain (14-18). Thereafter defendant filed a motion for summary judgment setting forth seven grounds (21-25). Various exhibits and affidavits were filed by defendant in support of said motion (see Exhibits A to M, inclusive). Plaintiffs filed counter-affidavits (26-29). The trial court granted said motion with leave to plaintiffs to amend the complaint (30) and plaintiffs filed an amended complaint (35-49). Defendants then filed a motion to dismiss and to make more certain (50-54) and a motion for summary judgment in which he reasserted the seven grounds included in the original motion and added five new grounds (62, 63).

The trial court then granted the motion for summary judgment (85) pursuant to which order a summary judgment was entered (88-89). This judgment did not permit any further amendment and plaintiffs moved to amend the judgment to permit such amendment (90) and an amendment to the amended complaint was submitted along with said motion (92-94). This latter motion was denied (99) and this appeal followed (102).

STATEMENT OF FACTS

This is an action founded in fraud and deceit and for breach of a fiduciary relationship. It arises out of a number of transactions between plaintiffs and defendant and Joe and Leo Aimonetto and C. B. Simmons. The transactions concerned the purchase and assignment of various interests in three oil wells located near New Castle, Wyoming.

The complaint contains five causes of action. The first three causes of action relate to what are designated wells #1 and #2 and involve transactions with Joe and Leo Aimonetto. The fourth cause of action relates to well #3 and involves a transaction with C. B. Simmons. The fifth cause of action combines all of the transactions as included within a scheme on the part of defendant to in effect play both ends against the middle.

Generally the allegations contained in the first four causes of action are to the effect that defendant represented that certain interests in oil wells were worth a certain amount of money, that defendant had paid for his share of the purchase price a certain amount and that he was acting on behalf of the plaintiffs as their agent. It is alleged that these representations were false, that defendant knew them to be false, that they were made with the intent of deceiving the plaintiffs and inducing them to spend money purchasing various interests in these wells that plaintiffs in reliance therein paid certain moneys to their damage.

It is further alleged that defendant received various interest in these wells for procuring plaintiffs' money to be paid to Aimonetto and Simmons. It is alleged that plaintiffs paid the money and the interests they obtained were valueless.

The fifth cause of action alleges defendant was acting in a fiduciary relationship with plaintiffs and yet was representing the sellers of these interests in oil wells and by virtue of this relationship plaintiffs were

induced to give money for these valueless interests.

Among other grounds defendant contended that there was no sufficient allegation of fraud. We will go specifically into the allegations and their sufficiency under the appropriate point in the argument contained in this brief.

In the motion for summary judgment the defendant also asserted that the three-year statute of limitations had run on this cause of action. This also will be taken up in detail under the argument.

Defendant through affidavits and exhibits and grounds of his motion contended that these plaintiffs have brought suits against the Aimonettos and Simmons to recover for these same damages and that the results in those cases are either *res judicata* or the settlement thereof has released defendant. This matter will be taken up under the appropriate points in the argument hereinafter set forth.

If defendant asserts any further grounds upon which the summary judgment could be sustained, we reserve our right to file a reply brief in answer to any such new or additional contention.

STATEMENT OF POINTS RELIED UPON

POINT I.

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN REFUSING TO AMEND THE JUDGMENT TO PERMIT PLAINTIFFS TO AMEND THEIR COMPLAINT.

POINT II.

TO JUSTIFY SUMMARY JUDGMENT THERE MUST BE NO GENUINE ISSUE OF FACT PRESENTED.

POINT III.

THE ALLEGATIONS OF FRAUD WERE SUFFICIENT AND RAISED FACTUAL ISSUES.

POINT IV.

THE THREE YEAR FRAUD STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS HAD NOT BARRED THE ACTIONS SET FORTH IN THE AMENDED COMPLAINT OR AT LEAST THERE WAS A GENUINE ISSUE OF FACT PRESENTED.

POINT V.

THE DISPOSITION OF THE ACTIONS BROUGHT IN WYOMING DO NOT ELIMINATE THE LIABILITY OF DEFENDANT AND THERE WAS AT LEAST A GENUINE ISSUE OF FACT ON THIS SUBJECT.

ARGUMENT

POINT I.

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN REFUSING TO AMEND THE JUDGMENT TO PERMIT PLAINTIFFS TO AMEND THEIR COMPLAINT.

The summary judgment from which appeal is taken here made no provision for plaintiffs to amend their pleadings. A summary judgment is recognized as being a harsh remedial disposition of a case. Particularly is this so where the defendant has not even answered the complaint so as to form issues. All defendant did here was to file numerous affidavits and exhibits before answer-

ing. This left the record in a state of flux and uncertainty and plaintiffs were entitled to meet the new issues presented by amending the complaint as was necessary. Rule 15(a), Utah Rules of Civil Procedure, in so far as applicable here, provides:

“* * * a party may amend his pleading only by leave of court or by written consent of the adverse party; and leave shall be freely given when justice so requires.”

At the time defendant made his motion for summary judgment on plaintiffs' amended complaint, he filed an agreement between the Aimonettos and plaintiffs and also set forth the dismissal of several cases against the Aimonettos. The agreement contemplated further work to put the wells into production — hence the price of interests became material.

At the time of arguing the motion, plaintiffs did not believe the agreement or the dismissals released defendant. In order to make it clear that there could be no release based thereon, plaintiffs believed they should specifically set forth in their pleadings the factual situation.

The Aimonetto suits had to do with the loss suffered by plaintiffs as a result of a violation of the Securities Exchange Act. The amendment to the amended complaint (92) discloses that plaintiffs suffered damages as a result of defendant misrepresenting the amount which was to be paid for undivided interests in the mining claims.

The amendment to the First Cause of Action is

typical (92). It discloses that defendant, purporting to act as the agent of plaintiffs, asserted the purchase price of a fourth interest was \$60,000.00. As a matter of fact, he obtained the one-fourth interest for \$40,000.00. Plaintiff Dupler put up \$30,000.00 and defendant \$10,000.00. Each received a one half undivided interest in the fourth interest. This would indicate that by virtue of a breach of fiduciary relationship, together with fraudulent misrepresentation, defendant defrauded plaintiff Dupler in the sum of \$10,000.00 because the fourth interest was purchased for \$40,000.00 and plaintiff Dupler was to receive one-half and should pay only a half.

This same situation is disclosed by the other amendments. We believe though not absolutely necessary, none the less, it was helpful to plaintiffs' cause to spell out this liability on the part of defendant.

There is no reason indicated why this amendment should not have been allowed. Plaintiffs had been permitted to amend their complaint once before but certainly there was an abuse of discretion on the part of the court in denying plaintiffs' right to make further amendments of their pleadings in order that the cause of plaintiffs might be properly presented. We believe it unfair to grant a summary judgment without permitting a plaintiff the right to amend his complaint where such is possible. Especially is this true where issues and contentions are not made by answers or pleadings but by affidavits and exhibits before answer.

We submit that the trial court committed prejudicial error in not permitting plaintiffs to amend their complaint in accordance with the provisions of Rule 15(a) above.

POINT II.

TO JUSTIFY SUMMARY JUDGMENT THERE MUST BE NO GENUINE ISSUE OF FACT PRESENTED.

The trial court, under the provisions of Rule 56, Utah Rules of Civil Procedure, granted defendant's motion for a summary judgment. In so doing, he necessarily ruled that there was no genuine issue of fact. If any such issue existed, then error was committed. See *Young v. Felornia*, 121 Utah 646, 244 P.2d 862; *Morris v. Farnsworth Motel*, 123 Utah 289, 59 P.2d 298; *Securities Credit Corporation v. Willey*, 1 Utah 2d 254, 265 P. 2d 422; 6 Moore's Federal Practice, 2nd Edition, Section 56.15 (1), (3) and (8).

In *Young v. Felornia*, supra, the Court stated as follows:

"In respect to a summary judgment Rule 56(c), U.R.C.P. provides:

'The judgment sought shall be rendered forthwith if the pleadings, depositions, and admissions on file, together with the affidavits, if any, show that there is no genuine issue as to any material fact and that the moving party is entitled to a judgment as a matter of law.'

"Under this rule, it is clear that if there is any genuine issue as to any material fact, the motion should be denied."

In *Morris v. Farnsworth Motel*, supra, this court set forth the rule which should be applied in determining whether or not a motion for summary judgment was properly granted:

“Under such circumstances, the party against whom the summary judgment is granted, is entitled to the benefit of having the court consider all of the facts presented, and every inference fairly arising therefrom in the light most favorable to him, which we do in reviewing the incident.”

With these controlling rules in mind, we will move on to a consideration of the genuine issues which were raised by the pleadings and affidavits of plaintiffs and the affidavits of defendant.

POINT III.

THE ALLEGATIONS OF FRAUD WERE SUFFICIENT AND RAISED FACTUAL ISSUES.

The elements necessary to make out a right of recovery for fraud have been set out in a number of cases. Perhaps the earliest statement is found in the case of *Stuck v. Delta Land and Water Co.*, 63 Utah 495, 227 P. 791 (1924), and one of the most recent is *Pace v. Parish*, 122 Utah 141, 246 P. 2d 273 (1952). This Court in the *Pace* case stated:

“This being an action in deceit based on fraudulent misrepresentations, the burden was upon plaintiffs to prove all of the essential elements thereof. These are: (1) That a representation was made; (2) concerning a presently existing material fact; (3) which was false; (4) which the

representor either (a) knew to be false, or (b) made recklessly, knowing that he had insufficient knowledge upon which to base such representation; (5) for the purpose of inducing the other party to act upon it; (6) that the other party, acting reasonably and in ignorance of its falsity; (7) did in fact rely upon it; (8) and was thereby induced to act; (9) to his injury and damage. See *Stuck v. Delta Land & Water Co.*, 63 Utah 495, 227 P. 791; *Jones v. Pingree*, 73 Utah 190, 273 P. 303; 23 Am. Jr. 773; 37 C.J.S., Fraud, Section 3, p. 215."

The law is also clear that the defendant need not benefit by his fraud, if he induces by fraud the plaintiff to part with money to another, 23 Am. Jur. 998, Fraud and Deceit, Section 179.

It will be necessary to take up the allegations contained in each cause of action so that it will at once become manifest that the necessary elements of the offense have been alleged in each cause. Our references will be to the amended complaint (35).

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION

It is here alleged that defendant represented to plaintiff Dupler that an undivided $\frac{1}{4}$ th interest in an oil and gas lease would cost \$60,000.00 and further represented that defendant had paid for the purchase price of one-half of said $\frac{1}{4}$ th undivided interest the sum of \$30,000.00, and defendant further represented that he was acting for and on behalf of plaintiff when, in fact, he was representing himself and the Aimonettos. It is al-

leged in Paragraph 3 that these representations were false, that defendant knew them to be false and they were uttered for the purpose of having plaintiffs pay to Aimonetto \$30,000.00. In Paragraph 2 it is alleged that plaintiff, in reliance upon these representations, paid \$30,000.00 for one-half of the $\frac{1}{4}$ th undivided interest in the oil and gas lease. It is alleged, that as a result of these representations, plaintiffs were damaged in the sum of \$30,000.00. It is alleged in Paragraph 6 that defendant had a fraudulent scheme to invest in oil and gas leases and that defendant would make representations to the public that he was investing and would fraudulently conceal the fact that he had made prior arrangements with the Aimonettos whereby he was to receive either an interest in the lease or a part of the money paid by members of the public for getting them to invest money in these leases. It was further alleged that the representations made by defendant were in furtherance of this scheme. It is also alleged that plaintiff did not know of the fraud until June of 1956 and this allegation is repeated in each cause.

We submit that all of the elements required by the above authorities are alleged in the First Cause of Action.

In addition, since the amendment was wrongfully denied, we may take into consideration the offered amendment in this case. It is there alleged that, as a matter of fact, the $\frac{1}{4}$ th interest was purchased by defendant for \$40,000.00 and that he paid only \$10,000.00 toward the

purchase of said interest and that he received an undivided one-half interest in the $\frac{1}{4}$ th interest for \$10,000.00 and plaintiff Dupler obtained an undivided one-half interest in the $\frac{1}{4}$ th interest for \$30,000.00. Hence, under these allegations, if plaintiff were not entitled to the entire amount paid, he would be entitled to at least the \$10,000.00.

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION

In this cause of action, it is alleged that defendant represented that he had put up \$17,500.00 to purchase an interest in a lease, when, in fact, he had not. He represented further that he was acting in said transaction as the agent of plaintiffs when, in fact, he was representing himself and the Aimonettos. It is alleged that these representations were false, that defendant knew they were false and made them for the purpose of inducing plaintiffs to put up the money for the drilling of an oil well; that plaintiffs in reliance upon those representations made by defendant put up certain monies for an interest in an oil and gas lease which is valueless. It is alleged that this was part of a scheme on the part of defendant to obtain money on these oil and gas leases. It sets forth the experience of defendant and the reliance placed upon him which establishes the materiality of the representations that he was an investor and that he was acting for them and not at arm's length.

Here again, the allegations in the amendment offered to the Second Cause show its materiality. As appears from the Second Cause of Action in the Amended Com-

plaint, defendant represented he had put up \$17,500.00. In the offered amendment it appears he put up nothing, yet he received a one-half interest in the $\frac{1}{4}$ th interest in the oil and gas lease along with plaintiff Dupler. This establishes plaintiff Dupler would be entitled to recover \$8,750.00 since the total $\frac{1}{4}$ th interest only cost \$17,500.00. It should be noted that Dupler and defendant were purchasing an undivided $\frac{1}{4}$ th interest and were not each buying an eighth.

Again, all of the necessary elements are alleged.

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION

Here it is alleged that defendant represented he had purchased for plaintiff a 5% interest in an oil well and a 5% interest for himself. He made the representation that he had made the payment of \$7,000.00 for each, Dupler and himself. It is alleged that these representations were false and known by defendant to be false. It is alleged that these representations were made with the intent to deceive plaintiff and to induce him to pay the amount of \$7,000.00 to defendant, and it further appears that Dupler, in reliance upon this, made the payment and as a result was damaged. It is alleged that the interest obtained was of no value.

Here again the background of defendant is alleged as a successful investor and one acting in behalf of plaintiff and they would not have made the payments had they known of his fraudulent scheme and that he was acting for himself and the Aimonettos.

We submit that all of the elements are present here as required under Utah law. Also, we may take into consideration the allegations contained in the offered amendment. It appears by the amendment that defendant represented that the purchase price of 10% of the lease was worth \$14,000.00. As a matter of fact, it was purchased with Dupler's \$7,000.00 and defendant put up no money. Upon this allegation, plaintiff Dupler would be entitled to half of the money he paid.

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION

The Fourth Cause of Action relates to a transaction with one Simmons. Here the allegation is made that Simmons agreed to sell a 50% working interest which would require plaintiffs and defendant to put up \$77,500.00. The representations alleged were that plaintiff and defendant had to put up \$77,500.00 in order to acquire a 50% interest. Defendant represented that he had put up \$15,500 for his interest and defendant represented that he was acting for and on behalf of plaintiffs.

It is alleged that these representations were false, known by defendant to be false and made for the purpose of deceiving plaintiffs and inducing them to put up the money for the 50% interest. It is further alleged that, in reliance on this, plaintiffs each put up certain sums of money, and they were damaged in that sum and the interests which they were to obtain were, in fact, of no value. Again, the background of defendant is alleged and the fact that this was an over-all scheme on his part.

This would establish the materiality of these representations. We submit that all of the elements are set forth to make out a case of deceit.

The allegations contained in the offered amendment aid in the over-all establishment of liability. It is here alleged that as a matter of fact the price of acquiring said 50% interest was \$62,000.00 and that defendant did not put up any money himself. And, not only did defendant receive his 1/5th interest of the 50% interest but also, in addition, he obtained 12½% interest in the lease. This shows not only deceit, but also a breach of fiduciary relationship requiring the defendant to disgorge his proper share for the purchase of his interest in this lease which had been paid for by the plaintiffs.

FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION

In this cause of action all of the transactions are alleged as part of an over-all scheme on the part of defendant to act as a fiduciary for plaintiffs and then, in fact, acting for the seller of these interests and also for himself, thereby and thus by his representations inducing plaintiffs to spend money for valueless claims to their damage in the amount paid. Here also defendant should be required to pay for the interests he received from payments by plaintiffs.

We submit that in each cause of action the elements of deceit were alleged and also a breach of the fiduciary or confidential relationship between plaintiffs and defendant.

POINT IV.

THE THREE YEAR FRAUD STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS HAD NOT BARRED THE ACTIONS SET FORTH IN THE AMENDED COMPLAINT OR AT LEAST THERE WAS A GENUINE ISSUE OF FACT PRESENTED.

The monies were advanced by plaintiffs to either the defendant, the Aimoncttos or Simmons on and between the 6th day of January, 1954 and the 3rd day of April, 1954. The original complaint was filed October 21, 1957, which would make the filing more than three years and less than four years after the payment of the various sums of money. So far as the causes of action are based on deceit or fraud, the three year statute of limitations provided for in Section 78-12-26(3) applies. So far as the actions are based upon a breach of fiduciary relationship, the four year statute of limitations applies and are not barred. *Kamas Securities Co. v. Taylor*, 119 Utah 241, 226 P. 2d 111; Section 78-12-25(2), U.C.A. 1953.

The three year statute does not begin to run "until the discovery by the aggrieved party of the facts constituting the fraud or mistake." In each cause of action, the following allegation is found: "That the plaintiffs did not discover the facts constituting the foregoing fraud until June, 1956."

This allegation is a sufficient allegation to postpone the accrual of the cause of action until the time therein alleged. See *Nunnally v. First Federal Building & Loan Assn.*, 107 Utah 347, 154 P. 2d 620; *Benion v. First*

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