1959

# Joseph H. Dupler et al v. Maurice Yates : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

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

## ARGUMENT

## POINT I.

## THE AMENDMENT WAS PROPERLY REFUSED.

Plaintiffs premise their argument on this point upon the proposition that the trial court committed prejudicial error in not permitting them to further amend their amended complaint after summary judgment. By their argument they reflect upon the prejudicial effect of the refusal by saying, in effect, as they do on page 7 of their brief, that they believe the amendments not to be "absolutely necessary." If the proposed amendments were not necessary, the rejection of the same could not be prejudicial. See *Hoover v. Lacey*, 80 F. Supp. 691.

While leave to amend pleadings shall be freely given "when justice so requires", the liberality of the rule is not without limit, particularly when no amendment of substance is contained in the offered amendment. *Davis Stock Co. v. Hill*, 2 Utah 2d 20, 268 P. 2d 988. The rule permitting amendments is directed to the sound discretion of the court and no abuse of discretion is shown. Plaintiffs' offered amendment contained nothing new and not previously before the court.

## POINT II.

## THERE IS NO GENUINE ISSUE AS TO ANY MATERIAL FACT INVOLVING THE SIMMONS TRANSACTIONS.

The fourth cause of action (R. 42-45) involves a 50% working interest, the subject of a purchase and sale agreement dated April 3, 1954, between C. B. Simmons, as seller, and Dupler and Yates, as buyers, which work-

ing interest was assigned to plaintiffs as stated above. By the contract the money to be deposited was "for the expense of drilling and completing" a well. It is alleged that the defendant represented to the plaintiffs "that the plaintiffs and defendant had to put up the sum of \$77,500.00 in order to acquire a 50% interest \*\*\*." It is alleged that this representation was knowingly false and untrue, was made for the purpose of deceiving the plaintiffs and inducing them to put up money for the acquisition of said 50% interest. It is also alleged that in reliance upon this representation, and other representations to be hereafter noted, the plaintiffs between the 13th day of May, 1954, and the 1st day of June of that year "paid to the said Simmons and defendant" the specific amounts hereinabove set forth in connection with plaintiffs' action in the suit brought by them against Simmons in Wyoming and for which amounts they now seek to recover against Yates.

In the deposition of Dupler taken in the Wyoming action, Exhibit "C" in the instant case, Dupler testified in part as follows:

"Q. Now, Mr. Dupler, \*\*\* when did you first meet Mr. Simmons?

A. Some time in March, 1954, the latter part of March.

Q. Where was that?

A. At the Antlers Hotel.

Q. And how long had you been in Newcastle at that time before you met Mr. Simmons?

A. I believe we got in that day, some time during

that day.

Q. Who do you mean by 'we'?

A. With a party by the name of Howard Marcus.

Q. Who is he?

A. He's one of the men that has an interest in—

Q. I see, one of the plaintiffs in this case, and what was the purpose of your going to Newcastle at that time?

A. We had an interest at that time in a couple of oil wells.

Q. Was that the Aimonetto stuff?

A. Yes.

Q. How long before this time did you acquire the interest in the Aimonetto property?

A. Well, it was some time in January, I believe.

Q. Of the same year?

A. Yes.

Q. And was that a completed deal at that time, the Aimonetto deal, or was that still pending?

A. When was this?

Q. At the time you met Mr. Simmons?

A. That was completed.

Q. The Aimonetto deal?

A. Yes.

\* \* \*

Q. Who is Mr. Yates?

A. He's a party that has an interest in this oil well.

Q. Is he connected in this lawsuit?

A. He's not connected with the lawsuit, but he

has an interest or did have an interest. (Page 2)

Q. Go right ahead in your own words.

A. And then Mr. Simmons started talking to us and he started telling us how bad these Aimonetto boys were and that they are no good, that he wants people to come into Newcastle, he wants them to make some money. and one of his words was, want to put the nose bag on you fellows so you fellows can make some money. I remember that word distinctly.

\* \* \*

the next morning we met with Mr. Simmons. and when I say 'we,' Mr. Yates and myself. Mr. Yates stayed there about two minutes and he excused himself, he had some other private business to take care of. Then the conversation started.

Q. What happened then?

A. Mr. Simmons had two deals. One deal, if I recall correctly, it was a completed well that, either 120 acres or 160 acres that he thinks could be bought for about \$200,000.00. Then he had this tract which was called No. 3 of 40 acres, and he was talking about that, and he says that that deal is surrounded by big producers and that this tract there with the device that he has exclusive on could be made into the largest producer in the field, and it would produce not less than a thousand barrels of oil per day. He brought out this catalog—well, it was a brochure is what it was, and he showed me the picture of this device, and he says instead of having just one hole, you would have five or six different

holes. I don't recall just how many. I know the prongs—I remember it had four prongs on it.

Q. But it was close to the Aimonetto lease?

A. Yes, and that was surrounded by some oil wells, was supposed to have been some big producers, I understood. Now, this could have been later on or that afternoon. Now I can't recall at this moment.

\* \* \*

A. All I can tell you is that I know I was out there, and whether it was that day or maybe a week or two or three later, but I imagine it was that day because I was impressed with all these oil wells around this 40 acres of land.

Q. There was nothing on the 40 acres at that time?

(Page 3)

A. No, sir.

Q. You saw the other wells?

A. They were close by.

\* \* \*

A. We got back to Salt Lake City, and I met with Dave Zinik, Ben Roe and Howard Marcus.

\* \* \*

A. And we talked things over, and then we got together — Mr. Yates was back in town and we talked to him. Then, oh, it must have been a week later from the time I left Newcastle, about a week later, Mr. Yates placed a call to Mr. Simmons from Mr. Zinik's office. All the boys were there, and Mr. Simmons wanted \$90,000.00 for fifty per cent of the well, and then I took the telephone, *and we com-*

*promised at \$77,500.00, and he told us or he told me rather to have my attorney draw up the papers in Salt Lake City because if he had them drawn up, there may be a lot of changes made and so forth back and forth that would delay the starting of this well, so there was papers drawn. They were sent to Newcastle. They were signed, I think, by Mr. Simmons. They was returned to Salt Lake City.*

\* \* \*

Q. Go ahead. Then what happened. This agreement was between you and Yates and Simmons?

A. *No, but I was the agent for Mr. Zinik and Mr. Roe and Mr. Marcus.*

Q. It starts out, in agreement between Mr. C. B. Simmons and Dupler and Yates, the second parties. I see, the first party agrees to deliver assignments to Dupler, Yates, Marcus, Roe, and Zinik—I see. Go ahead.

A. *I was merely their agent.*

Q. Now, the money was to be put at the bank until the well was drilled?

A. Until they —

Q. Hit the sand?

A. The sand.

Q. Was that done? Was the well drilled?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. *Is Yates still in this deal?*

A. *Sir, I couldn't tell you what deal he is in.*

Q. Why was the money turned over? (Page 4)

A. Because our agreement was when they hit

the sand, that we were supposed to turn the money over.

Q. So you turned it over in compliance with the agreement then?

A. Yes.

\* \* \*

Q. You say you turned it over—Yates handed you the paper to sign?

A. Yes.

Q. So you relied on Yates who was your partner?

A. *I didn't rely upon Yates to turn the money over. I saw the Schlumberger.*

\* \* \*

Q. You are saying now that in purchasing this oil, this lease, that you relied upon the use of that device as your reason for participating in the thing, or to what extent did you put it that way?

A. To what extent?

Q. Yes.

A. I will give you a simple figure.

Q. That's what I want.

A. Mr. Simmons took out a pencil and paper out of his pocket, or he had a piece of paper lying there, and he says, 'If this oil produced 1,000 barrels of oil per day,' he says, 'I have a contract.' I don't (Page 5) know with who he had it. 'We can get \$2.40 or \$2.50,' I don't recall the figures, 'for the oil. Within three months to eighteen months, you will get your money out and double it.'

Q. I see. That's what you relied on then?

A. After all was said and done, when a man



makes a statement of that type and shows you figures and tells you he has this device and what this is going to be—

Q. I see, and that was done before the well was started?

A. Yes, that's what took place. That's what took place in the room downstairs, not upstairs, downstairs between he and I in the apartment where we were supposed to be. He pulled the pencil and paper out. He's got a contract for all the oil he can deliver, whether \$2.40 or \$2.50 a barrel, and the well is to produce at least a thousand barrels a day. My God, it was box car numbers, and I didn't know. Maybe he was right and maybe he was wrong, but I thought he was right. He was an oil man.

Q. *That's what you relied on then?*

A. *Surely.*

Q. Other than that, what other so-called misrepresentations did he make to you or fraudulent statements or things that were wrong outside of that representation there? What else did he say?

A. Well, he said so much—he kept on talking.

Q. That's what I want to find out.

A. I can't recall all of the conversation, but he was going to make us fellows rich.

Q. All right. That's another thing you relied on?

A. *He was going to make us rich.*

Q. *You relied on that?*

A. That's right.

Q. He didn't make you rich?

- A. He didn't make us rich.
- Q. Say, by the way, for the record, who is Mr. Zinik? Give us his name and what he does. I might want to contact him.
- A. Mr. Zinik is in the sporting goods business. It's at 115 South Main.
- Q. How about Mr. Roe?
- A. Mr. Roe has offices on the ninth floor in the Deseret Bank Building.
- Q. Salt Lake?
- A. Yes.
- Q. What does he do?
- A. He's retired.
- Q. What's your association with them, Mr. Dupler?
- A. Just personal friends.
- Q. You are not associated with any business venture?
- A. We could be. I wouldn't say we are not associated. We could be in some other ventures, yes.
- Q. My point is, how did you happen to go back to Salt Lake and look up these two men to share in this (Page 6) venture instead of some other two people? Was there any reason for it?
- A. Suppose you had a good personal friend that you associated with and you think you got something pretty good?
- Q. *Just a personal relationship then?*
- A. Yes.
- Q. No other reason. Are they wealthy men or

well-to-do men?

A. They are all wealthy men.

Q. You knew they had the money if you could go ahead with the deal?

A. That's right.

Q. So after this one deal was completed and didn't come up to par or come up to your expectations, that's when you made up your mind you wanted your money back, and from that time on nothing has been done?

A. No, sir.

Q. And that's when the lawsuit was filed?

A. That's right." (Page 7)

From the foregoing, together with the allegations in the Wyoming action (Exhibit "A" herein), the allegations that Yates represented "that the plaintiffs and the defendant had to put up the sum of \$77,500.00 in order to acquire a 50% interest," that the plaintiffs relied upon said alleged representation and that they "paid to the said Simmons *and defendant*" the amounts specified, are entirely dissipated.

At the trial of the Wyoming action Dupler testified as indicated by Exhibit "B" in the instant case reiterating, in substance, the testimony given on his deposition. However, further testimony of Dupler should be noted:

"Q. After the conversation over the telephone in Mr. Zinik's store to Newcastle, what did you next do in relation to this deal? Where did you go, what did you do?

A. Well, I done nothing any further, Bill.

Q. Did you go to any lawyers, talk to any

people?

A. No, I told—I don't recall who it was, Howard or Mr. Roe, they went up to see my attorney, Sam Bernstein. I did not go.

A. Yes, sir, I paid \$15,500.

Q. When did you pay the first of that?

A. Well, the first of it, I believe, was in April, early part of April.

Q. 1954?

A. Yes, sir. I didn't pay it personally, Ben Roe paid it for me.

Q. Ben Roe advanced it for you?

A. He loaned me the money, yes, sir.

Q. Did you subsequently repay him?

A. Yes, sir. (Page 5)

\* \* \*

Q. And Mr. Yates introduced Mr. Simmons to you after he had invited him up?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And the principal topic of the conversation at that time was the proposition of your deal with the Aimonetto's?

A. With who? With Mr. Simmons, you mean.

Q. Mr. Simmons and Mr. Yates. You and Mr. Marcus and Mr. Simmons and Mr. Yates in this room after midnight on your first meeting.

A. I don't recall just exactly what the topic was of Mr. Aimonetto.

Q. Well, what did you talk about?

A. We talked about different things, I know one thing, as I said before, that he was brought

up for one reason, to try to prove to us that the Aimonetto's were dishonest.

\* \* \*

Q. And you called Mr. Simmons?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You are not positive of anything, but you know you talked about the price and had it reduced?

A. Well, we had a — we had talked about the whole deal, the whole thing had to be ironed out on the telephone, the whole deal was transacted on the telephone, called for what it states in this contract, and that was the conversation evidently that was on the telephone, because — (Page 7)

Q. Were you and Mr. Yates subsequently got together in Salt Lake, did you?

A. Well, we got together, I believe Howard and I and Mr. Zinik and Mr. Roe got together the following morning of our arrival and we talked this thing over. Yates did not come back with us. Yates stayed over. I believe it was the next day after Howard and I talked to Zinik and Roe that Yates — we had a meeting with Yates. That was the morning, or I believe that was the day that we called Mr.—

Q. *Well now, Mr. Dupler, what was your relationship with Yates at that time? Were you and Yates partners?*

A. *No, sir.*" (Page 8)

Plaintiff Marcus, testifying in the Wyoming action, stated in part as follows:

"Q. Did you place reliance on anything other than your own judgment when you became a pur-

chaser of an interest in the lease in question?

A. Certainly. I knew nothing about the oil business, so I relied on what I was told by essentially Mr. Simmons.

Q. You say 'essentially,' what exactly that he told you did you place reliance on?

A. I placed reliance on the statement that this would be a minimum of a thousand barrel, a day well, and we would make a great deal of money on this investment if we took it, and that he would use this—this drilling tool that went out in different directions. I relied on those statements.

Q. Pardon?

A. I relied on those statements." (Page 10)

Plaintiff Zinik testified in the Wyoming action in part as follows:

"Q. Had you ever met Mr. Simmons before the day of the telephone conversation from your place of business to Newcastle?

A. No, sir, I did not, sir.

Q. When did you first learn of the fact that an interest might be purchased in the 40-acre lease involved in this case?

A. *When Joe Dupler came from Newcastle.*

Q. *And from whom did you learn it?*

A. *From Joe Dupler and Howard — Howard Marcus.*

Q. Did they relate to you anything that purportedly or reputedly had been given to them by Mr. Simmons at Newcastle —

A. Yes. \*\*\*

Q. Yes. And what did they tell you? That is,

that they had learned from Mr. Simmons about this property, this 40-acre tract?

A. Well, the way they brought it out for me, they learned — they thought it's a very, very good deal and Mr. Simmons is a very (Page 12) fine fellow and knows what he is doing and knows how to drill a well.

Q. What else?

A. And I'm sure we can trust them, and he was going to drill a well entirely different than the others, and so — they explained it to me with these different ways of drilling it, four or five different ways, that it extends, and that the well is going to bring in at least a thousand barrels of oil a day, and that we get our money out of it within ninety days and we'll more than double our money within a year and a half.

MR. HICKEY: May I ask the Court, is it now the state of the record admitted that Dupler and Marcus and Yates were the agents of Zinik and Roe? Is that the theory that this is going in on?

MR. BROWN: I don't think there is any theory that Yates was an associate at all. It isn't intended by us.

\* \* \*

Q. Now, Mr. Zinik, I am going to ask you this. At the time you elected to go into this venture, which I take from your testimony to be at the time of the telephone call or about that time, did you rely upon anything other than your own knowledge of the area where the oil was located? (Page 13)

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you have any independent knowledge of the oil activities around Weston County, Wyoming?

A. Absolutely nothing.

Q. None at all?

A. No.

Q. Upon what did you rely in making that investment?

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